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FY 2006 BUDGET

(C.c. 05-63)

CHAIR KANE: '" (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for Monday April 4, 2005. For the record, we have our Council
Chair will be making the introductions this evening. Council Chair Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aloha, Lanai. Good evening. Let me start to your left. First, we
have Member Robert Carroll from the East Maui Hana District, then we have our
colleague from the Island of Molokai, Mr. Danny Mateo. Representing you from the
Kahului District is Mr. Joe Pontanilla. To your farthest right, representing you from the
Upcountry Kula District is Charmaine Tavares. Representing you, the Council from the
South Maui District, Kihei, is Michelle Anderson. Representing you from the Paia,
Haiku, Makawao area is Mr. Michael Molina. And representing from the Wailuku
District in charge of the Budget and Finance Committee this term is Mr. Dain Kane. So,
thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair Hokama. And excused for this evening's meeting,
Council member Jo Anne Johnson from West Maui was unable to attend this evening and
she sends all of you her aloha.
Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to go off, we're going to start off with Dwight Obado.
And if I mispronounce anybody's name, please forgive me. When you come to the
microphone state your name for the record and if you do represent an organization, we'd
like to know that too. We'll provide you with a total of four minutes. At three minutes,
we'll let you know that you have reached your three minute mark and that will give you a
chance to conclude your comments with an additional minute. With that, Mr. Obado,
please come forward to the microphone. And following Mr. Obado is John Ornellas.
Thank you, sir.
-2-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2005 (Lanai)

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR.OBADO: My name is Lui Obado. And, first of all, I want to thank you for considering my
last project of disabled fishing, and I appreciate that. Tell Mr. Medeiros and Mr. ...
(inaudible) . .. I said thank you. Now, my next project is to get all the veterans in Lanai
together. And I am here to propose my, my proposal for money so I can get the veterans
started again. I started this with me, myself, and 1. All three of us we got 20 of 'em
together now. So, it only takes 12 to get the veterans together and I got more than 12.
So, I need to get these finances so I can get this club going. It's getting out of hand now
because it's all coming out of my pocket now. And it was fun at first but now it's getting
expensive on my part. So, I need some help to get these veterans together.
I also need a building for us to organize ourselves. If we can have someplace in the Maui
County Youth Center or someplace or a small building that we can gather once a week or
twice a month or something, then that would really help.
Also, up, up in the cemetery, you guys did a fantastic job of awarding us the V A
cemetery but you guys forgot about the old VA personnel up, up in the old cemetery.
Right at this cemetery there's a shack that the gardeners was keeping all their stuff in.
And the shack fell apart. And Marco who does volunteer work to clean the whole
graveyard has no place to lock or secure his equipment up there. So, I'm asking also for
money to, for the veterans to build a shack up there for Marco so he can do his work for
the veterans in the old cemetery instead of the new one. That's all I got. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Obado. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
very much for your testimony. Next to testify we have John Ornellas. Following
Mr. Ornellas we have Bob Alpers, Community Work Day.
MR. ORNELLAS: Aloha, Mr. Chairman, and welcome to Lanai, Members. It's getting to be
like I'm, I'm like Ron McOmber, Jr. I come up here with the, I come up here with the
same thing every year. So, so, I first want to start off with, you know, continued support
for Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai. They do a great job here. They're very active.
Also, our preschool. Our preschool is now part of our master plan project for Lanai High
and Elementary School. We are, we are aggressively going after the P-20 concept, which
means preschool through grade 20. So, we've got Maui, Maui Community College on
board, and we have the preschool on board. So, when we sit down and talk with the
DOE, we continue to talk P-20. And you'll, you'll start hearing more about this because
the Governor has a committee with like the UH President and a bunch of educators and
stuff like that where there, there actually is something going on with P-20. You're
starting to hear more and more about how preschools does a great job in preparing
children to go into kindergarten because our kids are having a hard time compete when
they graduate from our schools. So, the P-20 concept, we're behind it 100 percent. That
is part of our master plan for Lanai High and Elementary School.
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Our senior programs, you got to maintain 'ern. I'm getting to the point, well, Ron's almost
there. I'm getting almost there. So, I need someplace to go and play checkers with Ron.
So, please continue the senior programs.
Our Police Department. We have a new Lieutenant. Yeah, I guess today was his first
day. I don't see him here but he's probably chasing down our criminals. We need, I
think we need one more officer here on Lanai. We are getting, our, our population is
getting bigger. Though it's slow but it is increasing. And I think we need to make sure
that our Police Department, our officers even though we're on Lanai and, you know, and
we're kind of away from the big city type crimes and stuff. We still have a lot of drugs.
We have a lot of domestic abuse. So, our officers go to these things not knowing and we
want them to make sure that they're prepared for anything when they go to these, these
calls. So, I think one more officer on Lanai and make sure that these guys are, are
properly equipped. And I heard they're going to be getting tasers or something. So, that's
better than bullets for now.
Our Fire Station. I think you've all seen our Fire Station. We've got a new tanker truck
that's parked in the back outside. And that truck is not going to last long if it's going to
stay out there. Mr. Hokama, Chair Hokama told me I guess today that we are probably
getting a new, a new truck this summer hopefully. Next summer. Well, if it's gong to be
a new truck, we may, we better be prepared for this new truck because if it sits outside,
it's going to rust out really quick. So, and I think we're going to get some more firemen,
so let's expand it now and be prepared for when, when we do, do get the new personnel
and the new trucks and stuff like that.
I don't know if any of you got to go by the Fifth Street tennis courts. A couple of years a
go, I think Riki helped us get funding to put wind screens up on the Fifth Street side of
the, of the, the tennis courts. We took some, we took some fencing, netting off of the ...
MS. ESPELET A: Four minutes.
MR. ORNELLAS: Okay, anyway I'll cut this short, but anyway we took some off of there and
put it over there. But they put it on wrong. They put it on the inside and it acts like a
parachute. It lasted two years. So, we need tennis, we need nets on the tennis, I mean
wind screens on the tennis courts but put 'ern on the outside so the wind blows the netting
into the fence which will support it a lot.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Ornellas, for your testimony. Hang on now, we might have
questions for you. Any questions for Mr. Ornellas, Members? Hearing none. Thank you
very much for your testimony. Thanks, Mr. Ornellas. Next to testify we have
Bob Alpers. Following Mr. Alpers we have Ron McOmber.
MR. ALPERS: It's good to corne here this evening and to say one word before thank you. The
Community Work Day that I represent thanks you for the support over the years and for
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the continued support in the last year. For newcomers, perhaps, Community Work Day
ought to be renamed Keep Lanai, Keep Maui Beautiful because we are affiliated with the
Keep Hawaii Beautiful and Keep America Beautiful. Just, I'll give a little bit of a
description of how much work is done through this Committee on this island primarily.
We have 18 different organizations that are part of the Community Work Day and most
of their work is in cleaning of the seashore, the ocean. West Maui is very generous to us
and they give us a lot of trash. And whenever the roads are open and that's always an
important thing, the roads are open, the groups work regularly, and the ocean edge is
much cleaner.
Let me give you an example of how, how things are kind of a part of a whole. Elderly
people are really conscious about our environment and there's some of our senior citizens
here this evening whenever they go to the beach for a potluck, the first thing they do is
clean up the area where they're going to have the potluck, and before they leave they
clean again. So, they're very conscious of that. Likewise, the Youth Center which is a
part of the program of the County I believe, one day a week they make a trip with a dozen
and a half kids up through the park, up to the hospital, and then back. And usually, 15 to
18 kids accumulate about one-third of a plastic bag of cigarette butts or pop can caps.
That sort of thing. They do the small pick up which also helps.
I did want to call to your attention maybe some of you know something worth happening
here, there was a bill introduced this year in the State Legislature to reestablish a litter
control office. I think there used to be one years ago. There's been an attempt to
reestablish that and it hasn't gotten very far in the past years and I, I think it's languishing
now in committee. In other words, it's probably going to sit there unless somebody puts
the pressure on. You may know more about that than me, or you may have a valued
judgment on if a litter control office, in other words, State, more of a State centralization
is better than what we do here in our County. But, again, I won't take a lot of your time.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Alpers. Members, any questions for Mr. Alpers? Hearing
none. Thank you very much, sir, for your testimony. Next to testify, Ron McOmber.
And Mr. McOmber will be followed by Edwin Magaoay.
MR. MCOMBER: First of all, welcome everybody to Lanai. And the newest member to the
County Council, I know you're better looking than Wayne so I, that's an improvement.
You got a lot ahead of you girl.
First of all, I'm very disappointed in the Lanai budget. And most of us would attest to
that. One of the things you have on here is sanitation landfill storm water. Well, that's
not a big problem at our landfill. Our landfill is we need a new landfill. That landfill is
inadequate. It's antiquated. It should be replaced and it needs to be replaced. It's, it's a
mess. The guys that work down there do their best but we need to have a new landfill.
So, you're going to have to plan that in your future budgets and you have to do it because
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Lanai is getting the short end of the stick of it. And anything that gets a short end of the
stick in Lanai you're going to hear from me.
I read in the paper the other day that MCC is asking for monies from the County. Short
note on that, I don't think that's proper. Better to get it from the State Department of
Education. We need our monies for our County and our rural areas as much as we do on,
on Maui. So, please look at that again. Do not give that to 'em.
I have a few pictures I'm going to give to the Clerk and let you guys look at these. These
are pictures I took this morning on the corner of Ilima and Third Street. We have a guy
doing car repair or demolition. This has got to be rectified. It has nothing to do with the
Police. The Police's hands are tied because they have no place to take these abandoned
cars. So, we need a storage yard. And you can do that in conjunction with the, with the
landfill or somewhere. But we got to get these cars off the street. This is a health hazard.
It's an eyesore. If I lived over there, I'd be bitching every day about this. This is not a
good situation, ladies and gentlemen. If you lived here, you'd be crying about the same
as the rest of us do.
Support Women Helping Women, Drug Free Coalition, youth, and our seniors because I
are one. So, if you don't take care of the seniors, you're going to hear from me on that.
Am I correct? Have we just filled the position on the DMV Office? Outstanding. It only
took three months. This shouldn't happen either for Lanai or Molokai or anywhere else.
The County has to look at these things that when they're vacated like that we need that
service, not part time.
Akaku is here. One of my complaints before I knew they were coming was we don't ever
get this stuff on record. This is, you've got to build something in your budget that we can
have Akaku over here and film more. Because we have some items coming up before the
Planning Commission that have to do with SMA Permits, and they're important that you
folks understand our struggle over here. If you only, if you don't see it on the tube,
you're not going to remember it. Please do that. We need Akaku either that or a camera
or something over here that we can record these meetings. Thank you, gentlemen.
I also noticed in the budget and it's near and dear to my heart because I just got off of five
years of the Liquor Adjudication Board that the Mayor wants to cut monies to the Liquor
Commission. Right now is not the time to do that. There's some great programs going
on. If that's the case, don't let the Mayor do that. Those monies for sting operations and
the thing that the Liquor Department is doing helps this community. Believe me. My
eyes are open five years being on that Commission it was amazing or that, that Board.
MS. ESPELET A: Four minutes.
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MR. MCOMBER: We need all the sewers hooked up. We don't have all sewers, all houses on
sewers in this, in this community and we have a few homes that sit right on top of our
aquifer.
And the prices of homes just like it is in Maui is escalating and we need to have you folks
be aware that when the taxes come due, when these people are buying $150,000 homes
for $400,000 it impacts everyone of us that own property on Lanai.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. McOmber.
MR. MCOMBER: Can I come back?
CHAIR KANE: No, sir, you cannot.
MR. MCOMBER: You know you guys only come here a very short amount of time and giving
us four minutes is not right.
CHAIR KANE: We give everybody, everybody in the whole County gets four minutes,
Mr. McOmber.
MR. MCOMBER: I understand that. I know that but we don't get a chance to be over there,
Mr. Chair. This is not right for the people of Lanai. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Is there anybody who has questions for Mr. McOmber? Hearing
none. Thank you very much. Next to testify is Edwin Magaoay. And Mr. Magaoay will
be followed by Michael Gannon.
MR. MAGAOAY: Aloha and good evening. My name is Edwin Magaoay, and I'm here as one
of the volunteer coaches to represent the Lanai Menehune Basketball League, which
serves a total of 100 to 120 kids ages 6 to 14 annually. And also as Chairperson
representing the parents of the 2005 Drug and Alcohol Free Celebration in support of the
Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai. The Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai has supported the
Lanai Menehune Basketball League and the Drug and Alcohol Free Celebration and has
made an impact in the Lanai community by providing alcohol and drug free activities for
the kids of all ages. They have helped to bring many organizations and groups together
by teaming up and partnering in many community projects. Their efforts have had a
significant impact in our community. Without their assistance many community
activities would not be able to get what is needed in order to provide services to our kids
here on Lanai. We request the support of the Maui County Council by providing funding
for the Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai because they have made a difference on the Island
of Lanai and our community needs their continued support. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Magaoay. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony this evening. Michael Gannon to be followed by Sharie Liden.
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MR. GANNON: Hi, Mr. Chairman, and Council Members. Thank you for coming. My name is
Reverend Michael Gannon and I've been the President of the Coalition for a Drug Free
Lanai, this is my second term, for six years. Prior to this I worked as a drug and alcohol
counselor for the Department of Education in Maui for seven years, and sat on the
Coalition for a Drug Free Hawaii as an executive board member for a year, co-chair of
our Statewide Coalition Committee. Sat with our now Governor when she was Mayor of
Maui County serving to help start the Maui County Coalition. And very grateful for your
support for the CDFL in the previous years. Grateful for Alice Lee and her support of
our youth activities and things that we've been able to accomplish. And I just wanted to
thank you for this next term for the new budget. The, I think the prevention dollars that
you invest in the CDFL go further in the fact that we're able to garner other organizations
and activities such as Menehune Basketball and other organizations in Lanai that come
together to help support the efforts that we, using your money, help to do. And so, we're
thankful for all that you do for us and appreciate your support for this term and next
budget term. So, thank you for coming.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Reverend Gannon. Members, any questions? Hearing none, thank
you very much for your testimony. Sharie Liden. And following Ms. Liden is
Kris Kahihikolo.
MS. LIDEN: Hello. I am Doctor Sharie Liden. I'm the VSA Arts Mentoring Program
Coordinator on Lanai. VSA Arts is a nationwide non-profit organization started by the
Kennedy family out of Washington D.C. VSA Arts provides learning opportunities and
career pathways in the arts for individuals with disabilities. Two years ago, VSA Arts
Hawaii Pacific was revived in Hawaii. Since last year Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai
has supported our after school art mentoring program for students K through 12 who are
in special education. Our student population here on Lanai, 25 percent of our students
are in special education due to their special learning needs. Our mentoring program
supports their strengths by providing valuable training in the kinds of art that can lead to
a career opportunity such as jewelry making, ceramics, oil painting, and radio
broadcasting.
Eighty percent of our participants surveyed have shown improvement in these protective
factors: respecting elders and receiving their support; improved self-esteem and feelings
of competence, increased pro-social behaviors in relating to their peers. The VSA Arts
requests your continued support in supporting the Mayor's line item for Coalition Drug
Free Lanai for the amount of $50,000. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And I'm sorry Doctor, Doctor Liden is it pronounced? Liden. Thank you very
much. Sorry for mispronouncing your name. Any questions, Members? Hearing none,
thank you for your testimony.
Next we have Kris Kahihikolo followed by
Beverly Zigmond.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: Good evening, Maui County Council Members. Thank you for taking the
time to come here to Lanai to listen to the needs of our small community. My name is
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Kris Kahihikolo. I'm the Program Administrator for E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai
Preschool. Our program is a licensed nationally accredited and Federally and State
registered as a nonprofit organization. Our main goal is to provide a safe, nurturing,
developmentally age appropriate preschool that is affordable for all of Lanai's children
ages 2 through 6. The preschool is governed by a volunteer board of directors and is
served by interested parents and volunteer members. The program is staffed by eight
employees and three of which have degrees in education, and four in which are working
towards degrees through MCC.
Our focuses at Keiki 0 Lanai continue with each passing day. We continue to maintain
full enrolment with 35 happy children. We are also happy to announce that we've gone
through the reaccredidation validation visit and we are awaiting the Commission's
decision. This prestigious recognition has been achieved by only seven percent of the
early childhood programs nationwide. The National Association for the Education of
Young Children Accreditation is a rigorous voluntary process by which early childhood
programs demonstrate that they meet national standards of excellence in such areas as
teacher child ratios, health and safety, curriculum planning, and administration.
Because our preschool is nationally accredited we need to maintain a high level of quality
of all standards. All of the employees that work directly with the children have dedicated
themselves to taking early childhood classes for the last two years. We will all be taking
another class from MCC in the month of September. With this in mind, the preschool has
even more qualified teachers who work 11 months out of the year. Therefore we need to
bring the wages up to a competitive level to ensure that we can keep the required number
of employees and not lose them to higher paying jobs. I cannot stress to you and the
other members of the Maui County Council the importance of ensuring the successful
operation of Lanai's only preschool facility.
Research tells us that the most critical years of life for learning are between birth and
eight years of age. During this period, attitudes about self and values concerning life and
learning are developed which will last a lifetime. Yet in today's society, parents are
having difficulty providing for their young children with an optimal caring learning
environment. Today more than 60 percent of the families in Maui County are juggling
the demands of work and family. Quality early childhood programs depend primarily on
tuition to operate but now they're struggling to stay in the business to serve families.
Consequently, consequently, many children are being placed in unstimulating [sic],
unsafe learning environments. According to research this can adversely affect children's
readiness for formal schooling or kindergarten. On the other hand, quality early
childhood programs have been proven to make a positive impact on children's
development. Quality early childhood programs can benefit the family because its
members go to work each day secure in the knowledge that their children are in good
hands. They benefit the employers because their employers can focus on the job without
worries about the welfare of their children. Quality early childhood programs benefit
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society because they've been found to save dollars in later years in social and remedial
services.
We also understand that the families of Lanai have limited income and resources to
survive from day to day. I know all of you are familiar with the Maui Voices Needs
Assessment Study. As indicated by this report, the number two and three needs of this
County can specifically be addressed by the preschool. Quality education and training as
well as services for special needs children and families is our specialty. Eighty-five
percent of the child development occurs in the first five years of life. Substance abuse
prevention and intervention is exactly what we teach our children during this time by
allowing them positive learning experience that helps to create a positive self image and
giving children positive ways to handle their anger and express their feelings is exactly
what prevention methods are needed. Because the preschool is proven to be a quality,
worthwhile, and viable part of this community, I ask for your continued support for this
fiscal year and the one to come.
I would also like to thank you for your time and your attention to the past needs of Keiki
o Lanai Preschool. Without your help and assistance, the program would not be able to
provide the quality care and education to Lanai's youngest residence. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Kahihikolo. Perfect four minutes on the nose. She practiced.
Any questions, Members? Thank you very much for your testimony. Next to testify is
Beverly Zigmond. Following Ms. Zigmond is Stacey Moniz.
MS. BEVERLY ZIGMOND: Good evening and thank you all for coming here and giving us
this opportunity. My name is Beverly Zigmond. I am the Domestic Violence Program
Coordinator with Women Helping Women here on Lanai. And I want to thank you for
your support last year. And I come before you to ask for your support again this year. I
have been in this position for two and half years now. Prior to that time, someone had to
come off island on an as needed or as available basis. That just doesn't work anymore.
And if it was possible to have some of the women that I work with come here before you,
they would but due to the nature of domestic violence that's not very likely.
But I'll speak on their behalf briefly and tell you a few reasons why we need somebody
here 2417. I get called in the middle of the night meet me at the emergency room. I need
somebody here for moral support. They call me at 8 o'clock in the morning. I need a
restraining order and will you come with me to court, again, for morale support. Or I get
a call from somebody saying, a mother with five children saying, CPS is going to take
our children away. We don't have any place to live. We had to leave the place where we
are. We're camping on the beach, that's not acceptable. Can you help us? The list goes
on and on and on. And again, I'm asking for your support. We need to have somebody
here on a regular basis. Preferably not 24 hours a day, but if that's what it takes I'll do it.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Zigmond. Members, any questions for Ms. Zigmond?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are you the only staff person on Lanai?
MS. BEVERLY ZIGMOND: Yes, I am.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: And what, what hours? You're just on call 2417?
MS. BEVERLY ZIGMOND: Basically, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, Ms. Zigmond,
thank you very much for your testimony. Next to testify Stacey Moniz. And Ms. Moniz
will be followed by Kristi Alboro.
MS.

MONIZ:
Good evening, Budget Chair, Chair, Members of the Council.
Councilwoman Tavares, I think you asked the best question. Is Beverly Zigmond the
only Domestic Violence Advocate on this island? She is. And when she says she's the
Domestic Violence Services Coordinator, she is our restraining order advocate. She is
our domestic violence response team. She is our support group facilitator. She is the
children's advocate. She is the safe house coordinator, which on an island with no shelter
and no safe house real system in place, it can be extremely challenging. She is on call 24
hours a day. She has no support on island. Actually, I have to take that back. I think she
has a lot of support from the community, and but in terms of other advocate support,
we're all on Maui. So, when opportunities like this come up, I try to come over to
support her. It's not the same as being here with her every day.
Long term, I'd like to see a shelter here on Lanai. I'd like to see a safe place for women
and their children to go. In most communities, shelters are kept confidential. The
locations are confidential. In a community like Lanai that would not work. '" (change
tape) . .. So other communities they make it a very public place and, and rely on the
community to keep those women and children safe. And that is the concept I'd like to see
for Lanai. I don't know at what point that will happen, but I'm starting to create that
thought and feed that energy and I think that it will grow in that way.
I thank you for the support from the County last year in the line item that you put into the
budget. And I'm grateful that it is in our, in the budget again and I hope that you can
continue to support this incredibly important work that we do specifically on Lanai.
When Beverly says in two and a half years since we have had an office working with
over 50 women in this community is a huge number. It's a huge number and that's only
growing. And the work that we're doing here is critical and I'd like to see some more
support for her as well maybe another position on this island. I'm working on, on that
concept as well. We're just so excited to have a full-time staff person. We see that that
need is, is here. So, now there's a need for more support. So, I just am going to ask that
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you continue in that line item at $140,000 and thank you so much for your support. And
thanks for coming to Lanai; I think it's important you're here.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Moniz.
Ms. Anderson.

Members, any questions for Ms. Moniz?

Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming, Stacey. Is there any kind of anger
management program on Lanai?
MS. MONIZ: That's a good question. There is a Batterer's Intervention Program group that
happens on Lanai. We don't do that service, but the Family Peace Center, a program of
P ACT out of Maui, comes and does that program here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: To help the spouses of the ...
MS. MONIZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... the battered women.
MS. MONIZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, Ms. Moniz, thank
you very much for your testimony. Next to testify is Kristi Alboro and she'll be followed
by Barbara, sorry, Members. Barbara Zigmond. And if I can ask everybody two things.
Make sure you state your name and don't be afraid to step up to the mike and speak so
we can hear you. Kristi Alboro. Is Kristi here? Okay, we'll make, we'll put her on the
side and we'll call her again. Barbara Zigmond. Good evening, Ms. Zigmond. And
following Ms. Zigmond is, forgive me, Sindri Olson. Good evening.
MS. BARBARA ZIGMOND: Good evening. I would like to just thank you all for funding the
Maui Economic Opportunity Business Development Corp. I'm here, sorry, it's much
easier. I'm here on behalf of myself as well as the Lanai Chamber of Commerce. In
January, we hosted a business plan writing class and 13 Lanai residents actually attended
the course. Nine successful business plans were written. And I know for a fact there are
a few other residents of Lanai who would have loved to attend but due to other
commitments they couldn't attend at that time. So, I'm hoping that some funding is
available for this course to be offered again potentially next year or sometime at the end
of this year. So, I just want to thank you again for coming over to Lanai and allowing us
to speak. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can state your name, please.
MS. BARBARA ZIGMOND: Barbara Zigmond.
12 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4. 2005 (Lanai)

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Zigmond. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony. Next to testify Sindri Olson. Ms. Olson will be followed by
Karen Mendes.
MS. OLSON: Aloha. My name is Sindri Olson and I'm here to represent the administration at
Lanai High and Elementary School. And CDFL recently, I'm supporting the CDFL
program, they helped us to continue our literacy program at our school. Already in place
we have a program that ran from or runs from grades K through 2. And in order to
extend that program we now are able to extend it to grades 3 through 8. The illiteracy
program is designed to provide teacher support through a coaching mentoring model,
which focuses on the best practices for teaching, reading, and writing.
Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai has really consistently made an impact as you've seen on
many different community organizations and service providers. And their promotion of
our collaboration is so helpful because as you know literacy is everybody's business. So,
I ask for your support and to, to support the budget for CDFL, the line item for increased
support for literacy for our school kids here on Lanai. And thank you all for coming and
listening as well.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Olson. Members, questions for Ms. Olson? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony. Next we have Karen Mendes. Ms. Mendes will be
followed by Max Kincaid.
MS. MENDES: I'm Karen Mendes. I'm speaking in behalf of the Lanai seniors. I want to thank
the Council for all your support and your concern for us and also for your continued
support for the MEO bus transportation. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Mendes. Members, questions? Thank you for your testimony.
Max Kincaid followed by Joelle Aoki. Joelle Aoki. Excuse me.
MR. KINCAID: My name is Sergeant Max Kincaid. I'm assigned to the Island of Lanai. Patrol
Sergeant out here. In 1990, I was one of the original board members to go down to
Monterey, California and we began the CDFL. Coming back to Lanai, we began the
program I believe in '92. Joelle guys have been doing a good job carrying it on. Just
recently, I returned back to the Island of Lanai. January actually of this year. And with
my SRO Officer, the School Resource Officer, Kim Masse, we've been able to institute a
lot of new programs for the school and for the children of Lanai. We have a tendency to
think outside of the box. And our basics was the Lanai Bicycle Safety Program. We
started a surf meet. We had a surf, we gave out the first annual surf contest over here.
We had several surf clinics where kids got to enjoy the beginnings of surfing. And we
just recently finished off the keiki fishing tournament this last weekend on the 24th.
Basically, what I'm saying is what the CDFL does and what they've been able to
accomplish for us is that we've been working with them hand in hand to bring new
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programs to Lanai that will take children and their families away from drugs and the evils
of drugs. They've also been very supportive in getting us the necessities to pull off some
of the programs we brought forth. In that I mean providing the insurance coverage and
all that kind of stuff, also providing tents, food, monies, things of that nature to make it
all happen. All of our events are completely paid for by either CDFL or community
sponsorship, background and back support. And basically having them work with us
takes off a lot of our, takes our responsibility of having to get insurance and things of that
nature because they've got that dialed in and they work it really well.
I request that you guys keep on supporting the program because we're committed to
bringing a different kind of life, our old lifestyle back to Lanai and sharing it with the
people and the kids here. I don't think there's a kid there that went to any of our
programs and ever walked away empty handed. And a lot of that was possible through
the support of the CDFL. Basically, it's a good program. Give 'em the money. Let's
keep rocking. Okay. Any questions?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Sergeant. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Sergeant, we
appreciate your work. Thank you. Next to testify Joelle Aoki. Following Ms. Aoki we
have Brigette Hanog.
MS. AOKI: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Joelle Aoki. I am the Executive
Director for the Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai. And I am truly grateful for this
opportunity this evening to share with you a little bit about the Coalition for a Drug Free
Lanai.
The Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai was established in 1990 and we keep a full week
schedule. Our hours of operations is 8 a.m., 8 in the morning to 4:30 p.m. in the evening.
Many times our, our events and our, our, our projects run through the weekends and
we're available 24 hours a day for counseling and referral services to many of our
partnering agencies. Our programs are designed to educate the public about the risks and
effects of alcohol, tobacco, and other drug use. Increase family and community
involvement in the prevention process, and to facilitate coordination efforts with schools,
the community and law enforcement.
Our programs include: Smoking Cessation, education, Bike Safety Classes, Trilogy
Apprenticeship Program which is an educational program for high school kids that are
interested in boat safety, mariners safety, retail operation, and tourist, the tourist industry
here in Lanai. And our upcoming underage drinking project, mentoring, sporting
activities, cultural activities such as hula. And many community activities such as Drug
Free Month, Christmas Festival. We participate in the Aloha Festival, Pineapple Festival.
And as you heard earlier from Sergeant Kincaid we do surf meet and do keiki fishing
tournament.
Our partners include schools, businesses, organizations, and government agencies, which
has increased from 20 partners in 2003 to 75 partners in 2005. The CDFL has worked
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diligently to coordinate and facilitate prevention efforts on Lanai. The Hawaii Student
Alcohol and Drug Use survey has been conducted every two years since 1987 while
usage habits in schools remain cause for concern, there is evidence that the Coalitions'
efforts has, has been making, has been making an impact on Lanai such as one of the four
core areas. Frequency of use in the past 30 days. For the first, since 1990 when CDFL
began tracking usage on Lanai, this 2003 survey shows that there was zero respondents in
any grade level with recent use of heroin, opiates, ecstasy or hallucinogens. Another
important note of improvement in the Lanai community as shared by the Maui Police
Department is in 1990's there was a high of 10,000 calls in one year, in a one year period
for various needs including felonies, drug related incidents, abuse and misdemeanors. In
2004, there were a total of 1,200 calls. A really big difference.
To support the improvement and quality of life on Lanai it is important that our
community work together collaboratively in order to preserve our quality of life. The
Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai is committed to reducing risk factors, increasing
protective factors in order to prevent or decrease the use of alcohol, tobacco, and other
drugs on island by facilitation of the collaborative efforts of our partners and stakeholders
in the community. We humbly request your support for the upcoming fiscal year by
approving the Mayor's budget line item for the Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai in the
amount of $50,000. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Aoki. Members, any questions for Ms. Aoki? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony and for your work, Ms. Aoki.
Next to testify
Brigette Hanog. Following Ms. Hanog is Phyllis McOmber.
MS. HANOG: Hi. Good evening. My name is Brigette Hanog. Sorry. I'm speaking on behalf
of the preschool here. My son three years old. He just started. Before he started
preschool it was, you know, everyday aunty, uncle, cousin, friend, even went to neighbor
for baby sitter. I'd call, you know, worry. But he started in December and life now feels
like has a future for us. Without the preschool, I feel like both of our lives would be in
shambles. At one point, Troy had to go to Oahu for two months because of financial
situations and then lack of a sitter. With the preschool, Troy has learned consistency,
stability, and ABC's. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Hanog. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
very much for your testimony. Phyllis McOmber. Ms. McOmber will be followed by
Waynette Ho-Kwon.
MS. MCOMBER: Good evening and welcome. I'm Phyllis McOmber. I'd like to thank you for
your continued support for many of the programs that Lanai benefits from. I tend to
encourage you to support those programs that are based here. I see programs that are on
Maui that get support and they say I'm going to also help Lanai, Molokai, and Hana. And
yet, if their budget is cut, we know who gets cut. I, I commend you for your past line
items for MEDB. The money they have received is leveraged ten times over for many
different sources. We've seen a lot of their support in economic development programs,
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and in Focus Maui Nui. I don't know if any of you participated in those focus groups but
that was one of the best programs I've ever attended and they were the head of it. And
they produced a Lanai report so that it's unique to Lanai. So, we benefited from that and
I encourage you to continue supporting that. I'm working with a committee that we're
hoping to have a woman's wellness and health center and they are helping us with that.
So, I encourage your support.
I have served for the past five years on the Grants Review Committee. Each year our
Committee members donated at least nine months of our time to do the best to review the
requests. When the budget is cut for many reasons, the board has an impossible job. And
when line items are given after this extensive review, it really negates the Grants Review
process. So, I encourage you to take a look at that.
I hope you will consider that many of the arts and culture programs, which really took a
real hit this past year, are doing preventative programs. And just because it says arts and
culture it doesn't mean that they're doing a beneficial program. They build self-esteem
and assist youth in keeping busy and hopefully not being enticed into drugs.
I encourage your continued support for this preschool. I happened to help start that 20
some years ago. I continue to ask for your help for Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai, and
of course for MEDB. Thanks again for coming.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. McOmber. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony this evening. Waynette Ho-Kwon followed by Maylee Watanabe.
MS.

HO-KWON:
Aloha, and good evening, Council Members.
My name is
Waynette Ho-Kwon. I'm the Executive Director for the Lanai Visitors Bureau. We're a
chapter of the Maui Visitors Bureau so any support gets trickled down through us. First
of all, I wanted to say thank you so much for supporting the Maui Visitors Bureau all of
these years and to ask for continued support for the next fiscal year. And it was great to
see some of you at the NACo Conference last year and so you can see firsthand what we
do on the road in our Destination Maui Nui seminars as well as our media blitzes, and
which we just came back from one in California. And with our funding this year for the
County we were able to take two other additional members from Lanai as entertainment.
So, they're here tonight. So, it was good. We, we had, you know, a contingency of three
representing the Island of Lanai so that was a good thing.
Also, I wanted to ask for support for the following organizations and their missions to
Lanai. First of all, would be the Lanai Youth Center, E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai
Preschool, Coalition for a Drug Free Lanai, VSA Arts, Pineapple Festival care of the
Lanai Chamber of Commerce, Aloha Festivals, Women Helping Women on Lanai, Lanai
High and Elementary School, and the Lanai Senior Center. Mahalo.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Ho-Kwon. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony. Next is Maylee Watanabe then we have Kenny Cabanting.
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MS. M. WATANABE: Hello. As you know that, that was just my boss. My name is
Maylee Watanabe. I'm here representing the Lanai Visitors Bureau. And just asking for
continued support and thank you very much for supporting us because we just recently
went to a media blitz as she said and it was, I was amazed on the impact that, you know,
us as the Lanai Visitors Bureau I mean has on this island and for the Maui County. And,
and I'd just like to thank you and ask for continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Watanabe. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony. Kenny Cabanting followed by Christine Rendina.
MR. CABANTING: Dear Mr. Dain Kane and Council Members. I love going to the Lanai
Youth Center. My name is Kenny Cabanting. I've been going to the Youth Center for
years. I've been coming here since the third grade. Now, I'm in the sixth grade. The
Lanai Youth Center is a place where kids from 8 to 18 can do work, have fun, and
fundraise. We sold 900 packages of cookies when we fundraised. We fundraise so we
can earn a larger building. Please give us a larger building. Giving us a bigger building
will be awesome there, so there will have more space and lots of people can come have
fun and do work. Mahalo. Kenny Cabanting.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Cabanting. Members, any questions? Good job. Thank you.
Next to testify Christine Rendina. Staff, if you can please assist Ms. Rendina. And
following we have Sean Amby. There you go.
MS. RENDINA: Hello. My name is Christine Rendina.
CHAIR KANE: Come forward. Come. Go closer to the microphone. There you go.
MS. RENDINA: Hello. My name is Christine Rendina. I am 10 years old. I enjoy the Youth,
the Youth Center but I can, it can get very crowded at times. Since I have been a member
I helped fundraise to, to get a bigger building. Please help us get a bigger building.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Megan Amby.

Sean Amby.

And then Ryan and Amby, and Ryan and

MR. S. AMBY: Hi, my name is Sean Amby and I've been, I'm 12 years old and I've been going
to the Youth Center for three years. I really enjoy going to the Youth Center but it's
really crowded. Please approve the request for money to build a larger building. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Amby. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Ryan and
Megan. We're going to make an adjustment here. We'll adjust that for you. Thank you.
And speak right into the microphone.
MR. R. AMBY: Hi. My name is Ryan Amby.
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MS. AMBY: Hi. My name is Megan Amby.
MR. R. AMBY: The Youth Center is fun to play in outside when it's hot. I come in and play
like to cool down. I come in there to play all kinds of games. The best thing to play in
here is when Pa'a, Sean, Nalani, was playing Life. I like playing Super Mario Sunshine.
I was trying hard to get money by washing police cars. I would love to speak in front of
anybody to help the Youth Center for money to get some money to get a bigger house for
the Youth Center. Love, Ryan Amby and Megan Amby.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ryan and Megan. Andrea Magdaleno and then Rose Sabino.
MS. MAGDALENO: My name is Andrea Magdaleno and I've been the Program Specialist at
the Youth Center for the past year. Since I've been part of the Youth Center, the children
have been working hard fundraising. They've been selling cookies and washing police
cars on a weekly basis in hopes to have enough money for a larger building which is
greatly needed.
Though the Youth Center is a fun, fun and safe place for the children of Lanai to come
after school and on the weekends, it also gets very crowded which can raise some safety
concerns such as kids running into one another while playing games. On really busy
days, we've even had to turn some children away, which really isn't fair to the kids. I'm
asking you, I'm asking that you help the children of Lanai by approving our request.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, questions for Ms. Magdaleno? Hearing
none. Thank you for your testimony. Rose Sabino followed by Diane Irons.
MS. SABINO: Hi, Mr. Kane and fellow Councilmen, thank you for coming. My name is
Rose Sabino. I've lived here for, for two years and I'm the Admin Assistant for the Lanai
Youth Center. The main reason why I feel that we need the expansion is for the safety of
the children. Okay. The Youth Center is approximately 23 X 50 feet and it's in a trailer.
And when you factor in office equipment, game tables, computers, shelves, and a study
area, we really don't have any room to move around. And in the past, about, we've had
two incidents in the last month where a child got hit with a pool stick. So, well,
fortunately, no one got hurt.
But let's see, our study tables can only accommodate 12 youths after that they have to sit
at the ping-pong table. If a youth is on the computer during our open rec, it is hard to
concentrate because pool sticks and ping-pong paddles are in motion. I would estimate
that we can only accommodate 20 youth at a time and then we have to consider turning
them away and that should not be an option because we should all be open, we should
always be open for all the youth of Lanai.
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Let's see, to get a feel of how small the area is I gathered some measurements between
equipment where the youth frequent. The distance between our pool table and the
ping-pong table is only 28 inches side by side. So, when you have a pool stick it's kind of
dangerous. If you have a person with a ping-pong paddle coming forward and someone
with a pool stick, that can be a hazard. Distance between pool table and walkway to the
bathroom is only 49Vz inches. Distance between pool table and bathroom door is only 50
inches. So, again, someone's walking out someone can get hit. Distance between
foosball table and the ping-pong table is 27 inches side by side. Distance between pool
table and the youth computer is 61 inches. Okay. Study area is only a 5 X 6 area. I
invite all of you to come by the Youth Center and see exactly how small our space is.
And I appreciate any or all help that you can give us. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Sabino. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Ms. Sabino,
thank you for your testimony. Thank you. Diane Irons followed by Lorna Sanches.
MS. IRONS: Hello. My name is Diane Irons and I am the Executive Director at the Youth
Center. The Youth Center is the only organization available to kids six days a week, 12
hours a day. We are open to ages 8 through 17. We offer a fun, safe place for the youth
to gather. Our programs are structured and supervised and our membership is free. Our
main focus is education, which includes prevention education. We offer a quiet place
where youth can do their homework. We also offer the use of computers and tutoring
when necessary. We have numerous educational aides such as the Leap Frog system, I
Quest and other computer educational software. We offer two science based prevention
education programs. These programs are curriculum driven and age appropriate. Lorna
who will speak after me will tell you about the program.
In our current facility we can safely accommodate 20 youth, which is about three percent
of the school population. On Lanai we don't have shopping malls, fast food restaurants
such as Burger King, McDonalds, or Pizza Hut. We don't have a Fun Factory, a water
park, or other entertainment facilities. We have one movie theater that plays the same
movie for six nights. In case you missed it on the first night you have five more nights.
The library is only open one night a week. In other words, the Youth Center is one of the
few places the kids can go to entertain themselves.
Expansion to our current facility is a necessity. We received a quote of $214,000 for
another doublewide trailer, which we're currently in a doublewide trailer. The Youth
Center's goal is $100,000. To date we have $40,000 in verbal commitments from the
community. The youth have been selling cookies, 900 bags to be exact, and they've been
washing police cars weekly to raise money for this effort. The youth, the parents, the
board, and the community are committed to this effort. Unfortunately, the quote came in
much more than we had anticipated. Back in February, we had asked the Mayor for
$50,000 for our expansion and we thank him for including it in his budget and I'd like to
ask all of you to support this.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Irons. Members, any questions for Ms. Irons? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony this evening. Thank ...
MS. IRONS: ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Please. Yeah, you can. Thank you very much, Ms. Irons. Thank you.
Lorna Sanches followed by Jay-R Pasion.
MS. SANCHES: Aloha, Chairman Dain Kane, and Members of the Council. Hi. My name is
Lorna Sanches and I'm the Program Coordinator responsible for implementing the
prevention education program at the Lanai Youth Center. Our age appropriate program
are curriculum based. We have enlisted the services of an outside evaluator and that's the
Catalyst Group headed by Dr. Richard Kim. .. {change tape} . .. to evaluate the success of
the program. Pre and post testing indicate our youth have increased their awareness of
the harmful effects of alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs.
It is, in its present state, our facility is too small to accommodate the youth who want to
attend. There are over 600 youth at the school and yet we can only accommodate 20 at
best. More than 20 youth can create an unsafe condition. We have had to turn away
youth due to overcrowding. Unlike Oahu and Maui our youth don't have other places to
hang out like the mall, fast food restaurants, movie theatres, et cetera. Experience tells us
when you turn away your youth, they take it personally and tend not to come back. I urge
you to support our request for funding to expand. Help us, please help us to help our
youth by not turning them away. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Sanches. Members ...
MS. SANCHES: I also have another testimony. It's from a schoolteacher. She's a parent. She
was unable to, to read hers. She had to attend classes at MCC. It's really short.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MS. SANCHES: Hi. I, Colleen Ayudan, would like to testify as to the need of a larger facility
to house Youth Center activities. Currently, my Lanai High and Elementary School
Dance and Cheer Squad are partnered with the Lanai Youth Center and all girls are
involved in programs, which promote self-responsibility and civic awareness. Computers
have been, computers have been able to be purchased, yet we lack the space. Please help
me in recognizing the need for improved facilities. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Sanches. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for that testimony. Jay-R Pasion. And, Ms. Sanches, you just read for Colleen 'cause
she's not here. Okay. Thank you. You know what we'll adjust that for you. Hang on
one second, yeah.
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MR. PASION: Hello. My name is Jay-R Pasion. I'm 10 years old. I go to the Youth Center
everyday. We have been fundraising for months. We sold 900 packages of cookies and
washed police cars once a week. I would like for you to please approve our request for
money for a larger building. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you for your
testimony. Is Kristi Alboro here? Did she make it back? Hearing none. Is there
anybody here that has not testified that would like to testify this evening? Now is your
opportunity. Sir, go ahead and step forward. State your name for the record and when
you're done then we'll have you sign up. Thank you.
MR. HORNEMAN: Good evening. My name is Kevin Horneman. I am a CDFL Board
Member and I'm also a parent of two children here that are attending school on the island.
I would like just to ask your support of the CDFL. I think that they are integral in all the
programs that are here on the island for the youth. And on the note, I'd like to say when I
looked into sporting programs at the school, I found out there are no sporting programs at
the school for any students other than senior high students. So, I've heard that on Maui
there are some schools that get together, some different youth groups that type of thing.
There is no way that we can raise the money to send the children, the younger children.
The, the senior high students, the school pays for 'em to go to the other islands to play
sports. But the younger children aren't, aren't able to. I think that creates a specific need
that exists here that doesn't exist on Maui for the children.
I know one request my son has been working on and a lot of his friends is a skateboard
park. We talked about it at the Mayor's meeting. We asked for some money to be
included for that through the Parks Department. The kids have gotten together. They've
had four meetings already. They have a design committee, a liability committee, and
they're working on a presentation of putting this together. And they're hoping that they
can get some support from the Mayor and the Council for a skate, an outdoor skate park.
It's a simple, something simple outside. And, and I even see that CDFL is able to help
these kids. So, basically, I guess most of the comments for this evening have been the
youth of Lanai. We, we could use your help on all the programs but specifically the
CDFL and the skate board park.
I also would like to say that I really enjoy the quality of life here. And one thing I do like
about it is the fact also of how well everyone gets along and I also want to mention that
whatever you can do for the seniors, the senior housing on the island to keep the seniors
here on the island with their grandchildren. It's just special and it does make this a
special place to live. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Horneman. Members, any questions? Hearing none.
Nani Watanabe. And again if there is anybody else, please feel free to come forward and
sign up with our secretary.
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MS. N. WATANABE: Aloha, Chair Dain Kane and Council Members. Money for the Aloha
Festivals has really made a difference for Lanai and I'd like to say mahalo to our last
Chairperson Susu Woolsey who really did a fantastic job last year and really brought
Aloha Festivals together. Well, by God's grace I am chairing Aloha Festivals this year.
So, remember to put a plus and not a minus on our budget. But I'd like to say thank you
so much for helping Lanai out. And, you know, working with Lanai's budget is not very
easy and as you all know we have only one airline now. But the other good news is we
do, we're going to be utilizing a lot of our talents from the Island of Maui, which is our
sister, you know, island. And 10 and behold by God's grace again, my co-chair is
Pearl Ah Ho. So, we're going to take this off together and we know all is going to do
well but we'd like to, you know, say mahalo for really looking into Lanai. And mahalo,
Riki, for sharing a lot with me.
And one of the things that if you could look into for us is Manny has always been
donating a lot of his time and never told us that he was charged to empty our trash after
our event. And so, and I think there's a charge for that but he wouldn't tell us how much.
And if that would help us if that could actually be waived. If you could look into that.
But other than that support us again next year. We hope that Aloha Festivals will not die
on this island but I know with the community and hoping that the community would find
in their hearts to come back together as a community to work to make this event possible.
Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Watanabe. Members, any questions? And I only have a
comment, Ms. Watanabe. Your Aloha Festivals last time was fabulous. So, myself and
my family truly enjoyed it. So, great job you folks. Look forward to the next one.
Anybody else here would like to testify. Please come forward. Come. We'll have you
sign up after you finished with your testimony.
MS. BASQUES: Good evening, Maui County Council. My name is Winifred Basques. I'm a
retiree for Lanai Community Hospital for 22 years and I am semi-retired. I went back to
work again due to the fact that they're short staffed. My concern is to do with Hospice on
the Island of Lanai. We do not have no Hospice. I am a representative for the Island of
Lanai with the County Council, excuse me, it is Council of Aging with John Tomoso.
I've been there going every other month to talk about Hospice on the Island of Lanai. We
had two sessions already but the thing is that people do not know what is Hospice is
about. It's about almost like a person you will be leaving the earth and going either up
there or down there. But the thing is that we have to create something where people can
come to and talk about their bereavement. And the thing is it's a very crucial issue
because people do not know where to go, get information, how to do it. But in order to
do that we need the space and we need like a clergyman, a regular doctor, a social
worker, and a nurse to participate in this crucial issue on the Island of Lanai.
My concern is that I've been a paramedic for 22 years and I took care of all kinds of
patients. You name it. I did it all. And I was the ambulance driver. I pick it up; I
deliver. But I see, when I see them go, it's hardest to me that you know the people on the
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Island of Lanai. Like when we go off island I miss driving the ambulance. It has been
experience wise in knowing that you're there to help the people. But when you see them
go the other way, they not going out the door, foot walking out is not, the other way.
That's when it's very crucial that Island of Lanai people have to wake up. And I have
been having sessions with John Tomoso to bring this very crucial issue on the Island of
Lanai. And if we can do that then it needs to do, to do with the budget. Everything does
with budget. Money wise is very limited to certain areas but depending how you spend
the money too as well. You know the thing is that I very concerned about this issue.
And another thing is that I concerned, another issue is to do with the roads. The roads
has to be maintained. It's breaking up cars. The underneath is totaled. People with cars
are being very, very expensive and we have here on the Island of Lanai only one service
station. The service station gasoline is very sky high over three dollars. And in order to
do that we have to feed that service station but money wise is that like I saying is very
crucial on the island due to the fact of the 9/11 and cutbacks. People cannot come here
because no revenues are coming in and we will appreciate what you can do for us. And I
thank you again for coming over and listening to the people of the Island of Lanai.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Basques. Members, any questions? Ms. Basques, one question
I have for you if you can please. You talking about the roads, is there a particular area
you're talking about or referring to?
MS. BASQUES: No. It's all around. Because when I leave the Third Street, when you come
out from Caldwell there are a lot of diversion area and, yeah, of course you
have... {inaudible} . .. to cover it up. But then the thing is that when we have this rain
come down it washes away. It doesn't stay there like, you know, if you can do a
resurface thing cost money. I used to live with my husband. He was the Highway
Supervisor for maintenance for 29 years so I know what he's talking about.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much.
MS BASQUES: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Is there anybody else here this evening that has not testified that
would like to? Now is your opportunity .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: If not, Lanai, thank you very much for your, sure, thank you very much
everybody for being here and hang on one second.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just wanted the Members to be aware we have one of our senior
kupunas who have given the County and this community a lot of service. He's known as
Uncle Sol Kaopuiki who just got off the Maui County Cultural Resource Commission
- 23-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 4, 2005 (Lanai)

and he's, of course, we have just confirmed appointment of Nani Watanabe to take his
place. But Uncle Sol is an invaluable asset of this community. He has helped us
tremendously and I just wanted to publicly recognize the service that Uncle Sol gives
Maui County. So, aloha, Sol. Mahalo for your work.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Ladies and gentlemen, thank you very much for being
here this evening. We really appreciate all of your comments and they'll be taken very
seriously in our deliberations. This meeting for April 4, 2005 is adjourned .... (gavel) . ..

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused:
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

JJ)

DEFER pending further discussion.

7:25 p.m.

Transcribed by: Cathy L. Simmons
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